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Mr. Carl A. Christiansen was born in Christiana, Norway in 1856, attended a local technical academy, and then came to the United States in 1880.  For several years, he was employed by several manufacturing firms in Pennsyl​vania, Rhode Island, and Massachusetts.  In 1885, he joined the Federal Service as a Machinist at Watertown Arsenal in Massachusetts.  Two years later, he was named head foreman of the Seacoast Cannon Shop at Watervliet Arsenal near Albany, New York.  During the next four years, he supervised construction of the north wing of the historic Big Gun Shop, and in January 1891, he was named Master Gunmaker at Watervliet.  For the final eleven years of his life, from 1891 until 1902, Mr. Christiansen directed the manufacturing of this country's first 16-inch cannon.  He designed lathes, cranes, shrink pits, and a new shrinkage furnace, using the oil and high pressure steam principle.  When he died midway through his 47th year, a local obituary notice stated that “To the task of planning and constructing the 16-inch gun, and the accompanying worry and care, it is said, is directly attributable to the great mechanic's death.”  When completed, the 16-inch gun weighed 385,400 pounds, was 49-feet long, and fired a 2,370 pound projectile of a distance of 21 miles.  Its first successful firing ironically occurred the day after Mr. Christians​en's death.  In 1984, the Cannon Shop at Watervliet was dedicated to his memory and is now a National Historic Landmark.
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Mr. Thomas F. Colleran was born in 1886 and graduated from Rutgers University in 1916 with an engineering degree.  He began his Federal Service career at Sandy Hook Proving Ground in 1917, but was assigned to Aberdeen Proving Ground in 1918 and remained there in various capacities, both civilian and mili​tary, until 1956.  He played a key role in establishing and implementing Ordnance testing techniques which were the backbone of the Proving Ground test procedures from World War I on.  Between 1920 and 1929, he was succes​sively appointed Chief of the Range and Fire Control Section, Chief of the Range Operations Branch, Chief of the Planning and Engineering Section, and Chief of the War Plans Section holding this last post for twelve years until 1941.  During World War II, first as a Major, and later as a Lieutenant Colonel and Colonel, he held several posts at Aberdeen Proving Ground, the last of which was command of the 2118th Officer's Research and Development Control Group in 1946.  It was largely through his efforts that Aberdeen Proving Ground received the Army and Navy “E” for Excellence Flag on five separate occasions.  His final position was Director of Development and Proof Services at Aberdeen Proving Ground, from 1947 until 1956.  He then continued until 1962 as consultant to the Commanding General, Aberdeen Proving Ground and the Director of Development and Proof Services.  Mr. Colleran died in 1969.

COLONEL

ANGELO R. DEL CAMPO, JR.
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Colonel Angelo Del Cam​po, Jr. was born in Chicago in 1908, the fifth of six children of an immi​grant saloon keeper.  He was admit​ted to the United States Military Acade​my in 1927, and in the interim, before reporting to West Point, worked as a money courier for the Chicago banks during the height of the great gang wars.  Assigned to the cavalry upon graduating in 1931, he was assigned to the Ordnance Corps in 1938 and made a branch transfer in 1941.  From 1943 to 1945, following his graduation from the Command and General Staff College at Ft. Leaven​worth, he served as Chief of Military Ground mission to Equador.  He played a crucial role in preventing a coup against the Equadorian government, and was awarded the Abdon Calderon Award, First Class, by the President of that country.  He completed a Master of Science in Nuclear Physics at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology in 1948 and then undertook development of the atomic artillery round, a con​cept he had proposed in the inter​ests of limiting nuclear devastation in future wars to military targets.  He spearheaded the integration of the 280mm shell in the Army arsenal by 1953 with the assistance of Rob​ert Schwartz, an able young engi​neer.  Following his graduation from the Industrial College of the Armed Forces in 1953, he was named Director of the Ballistics Research Laboratory at Aberdeen Proving Ground.  Retiring from the Army in 1956, he directed the Atoms for Peace Project for Westinghouse Electric 1961.  During this period, he built the first water-cooled European thermal reactor in Belgium.  From 1961 to 1971, he conducted top secret projects for the Pentagon while working for the MITRE Corporation in Massachusetts.  Colonel Del Campo retired in 1971 and died in 1983.

STAFF SERGEANT

WILLIAM C. FEATHERSTONE
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Staff Sergeant William C. Featherstone was born in Michigan in 1918 and entered the Army in the fall of 1940.  He underwent training at Camps Beauregard and Livingston, Louisiana and at Fort Devens, Massachusetts.  During the period 1942 through 1944, he was assigned to the 732d Ordnance Light Maintenance Company, part of the 32d Infantry Division.  He participated in the Buna, Saidor, and Aitape campaigns in New Guinea.  During these operations, the 732d experienced a loss of over one-fifth of its strength due to casualties, not including men disabled because of accidents or disease. This fact obliged the remaining personnel to work seven days a week to meet the requirements of the 32d Infantry Division.  As a Technician, Grade 3, he was recognized as one of the leading enlisted men in the unit as it strove to accomplish its mission.  During the Buna Campaign (November 16, 1942 through January 3, 1943), he volunteered for a mission to recover abandoned American weapons under intense enemy fire.  These weapons were required to enable American troops to continue fighting and could not be allowed to fall into enemy hands.  Following his successful completion of this action, Staff Sergeant Featherstone was awarded the Silver Star.

CHIEF WARRANT OFFICER FOUR

GEORGE C. GRATCHEN
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Chief Warrant Officer Four George C. Gratchen was born in Joffre, PA, in 1929.  He entered the Army as a wheeled vehicle mechanic in 1950 and remained on duty as an enlisted man for 11 years, culminating in his assignment as Engineer Operations Sergeant at Headquarters, 7th Army in Europe.  Appointed as a warrant officer in June 1961, he completed seventeen years in a variety of assignments in Europe, the U.S., the Pacific Area, and Vietnam.  One of his major accomplishments was the development and implemen​tation of the maintenance system utilizing organic equipment for the removal of all depot stocks from France to Germany during operation FRELOC.  While Commander of the Equipment Support Center in Mannheim, Germany during the years 1972 to 1974, he was responsible for the management and materiel support to Headquarters U.S. Army Europe, Seventh Army, and all installations East of the Rhine River.  He became increasingly concerned with the status of the U.S. Army Warrant Officer Corps while serving in Europe in the mid-1970s.  He felt that the schooling, career patterns, standards for technical competence and other requirements for a modern Warrant Officer Corps were lacking.  He therefore helped form the European Warrant Officers' Association, and later merged it with the newly formed U.S. Army Warrant Officers' Association.  This merger has resulted in substantial improvements in the Army Warrant Officer program.  Mr. Gratchen retired in 1978 after 28 years' service.

MAJOR GENERAL

ROBERT J. PROUDFOOT



Major General Robert J. Proudfoot was born in Philippi, West Virginia in 1922 and enlisted in the Army in 1942.  He attended Ordnance Officer Candidate School at Aberdeen Proving Ground late in 1943 and subsequently served in a variety of assignments in the U.S., Korea, and the Pacific. He was a graduate of the University of Maryland and later earned a Master of Business Administration at Babson Institute.  Late in 1950, as Depot Officer for the 69th Ordnance Ammunition Company in Hungnam, Korea, he was instrumental in the successful evacuation of nearly 9,000 tons of ammunition in less than a week in the face of an enemy advance.  The operation was accomplished owing to his extraordinary initiative, aggressiveness, and planning ability.  In the mid-1960s, he was responsible for the successful programming of all munitions and missiles required in support of all Army elements in the Pacific Theater.  Sent to Vietnam to deal with an urgent munitions logistics project, he developed within a few days a munitions control and supply system which normally would have taken the Logistics Command several weeks to organize. As Project Manager for the Shillelagh and later the Lance Missile systems, he oversaw the inclusion of these two major weapons systems into the Army inventory between 1968 and 1973.  He subsequently directed the $3 billion Army Materiel Acquisition Program,  and then culminated his nearly 33-year career with the command of the White Sands Missile Range in New Mexico from 1974 to 1975.  Among his other accomplishments was the planning for the High Energy Laser Test Facility.  General Proudfoot retired from the Army in 1975 and died in 1987.  

COLONEL

HERMANN H. ZORNIG



Colonel Hermann H. Zornig was born in Newall, Iowa in 1888, attended Iowa State College from 1905 to 1909, and entered the Army as a second lieutenant in the Coast Artillery in 1910. During his 36-year Army career, he made a number of valuable contributions.  While serving at Picatinny Arsenal in 1925, he concluded that the research and development program there was not effective and assisted in the reorga​nization of the Arsenal into two divisions concerned with production and technical matters.  As Chief of the Technical Division, he concentrated on the design of timed-delay and variable-timed fuses. As the Assistant Military Attaché assigned to the U.S. Embassy in Berlin from 1927 to 1929, he applied and was accepted to the Technische Hochschule at Charlottenburg.  Meeting the tuition expenses out of his own pocket, he studied ballistics under several of the leading German scientists in the fields of interior and exterior ballistics and organic and inorganic chemistry.  He ultimately pioneered the development of point detonating or contour fuses after his return to the United States.  As Chief of the Ammunition Division of the Technical Staff, Office Chief of Ordnance, he recognized the need for a statistical approach to quality control and statistics.  He organized the first Scientific Advisory Committee, linking civilian, industrial, and academic science with the military.  From 1935 until 1938, he headed the Research Division at Aberdeen Proving Ground.  After persuading the Chief of Ordnance to separate research and development from proof work, he was named first director of the Ballistics Research Laboratory. During World War II, he developed heat-treated gun tubes capable of handling the newer and more potent types of ammunition.  COL Zornig was retired for disability in 1946 and died in 1973.
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